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Husband

John "Jack" WIGGINS

Born

Place

Abt 1790

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

Abt 1868

Sampson Co, NC

Married

Place

Abt 1848

Husband's father

Husband's mother

Wife

Catherine A. "Kitty" WILLIAMS

Born

Place

Abt 1823

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

Abt 1899

Wayne Co, NC

Buried

Place

Near Falling Creek Methodist Church (small over-grown graveyard), Wayne Co, NC

Wife's father

Bennett WILLIAMS

Wife's mother

Keren JORDAN

Children

List each child in order of birth.

Edith Catherine WIGGINS

1 

F

Born

Place

Abt 1849

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

Aft 1860

Martha Ann WIGGINS

2 

F

Born

Place

Abt 1852

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

Aft 1880

Spouse

Jessie HINSON

Married

Place

Bef 1868

Sampson Co, NC

George William WIGGINS

3 

M

Born

Place

6 Jan 1853

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

4 Jul 1917

Sampson Co, NC

Spouse

Anna Eliza ROYAL

Married

Place

31 Dec 1871

At Simon Royal

Benjamin Jeams WIGGINS

4 

M

Born

Place

Abt 1857

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

Possibly Gaston Co, NC

Spouse

Susan Catherine "Susie" WARRICK

Married

Place

Abt 1875

Thomas Jay Lathan WIGGINS

5 

M

Born

Place

Abt 1859

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

22 Jan 1892

Sampson Co, NC

Buried

Place

Wiggins Cemetery, Goshen Swamp, Sampson Co, NC (no stone)

Spouse

Amy Elizabeth ANDERS

Married

Place

Abt 1881

Rufus Richard "Rufe" WIGGINS

6 

M

Born

Place

29 Aug 1864

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

1 Sep 1927

Duplin Co, NC

Buried

Place

Sect. 4, Maplewood Cemetery, Mount Olive, NC

Prepared by

Address

Phone

E-mail address

Date prepared

Betty L. Wiggins

757-220-0727

bwiggins@widomaker.com
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Rufus Richard "Rufe" WIGGINS

6 

M

Spouse

Florence M. BORDEAUX

Married

Place

21 Dec 1893

Wayne Co, NC

Josiah S. "Joe" WIGGINS

7 

M

Born

Place

Aug 1868

Sampson Co, NC

Died

Place

Feb 1927

Custer Co, OK

Spouse

Lue M. 

Married

Place

Abt 1890

Notes

HUSBAND

-

John "Jack" WIGGINS

Note:  Betty Wiggins 5/15/07:  We do not know for sure yet who the father of John "Jack" Wiggins was.  Agness 

Wiggins Gunter believes it might be Elihu Wiggins.  Jack also could be one of the three bastard children of Martha 

Wiggins.  John “Jack” Wiggins was about 5-10 yrs old in 1800.  Of the 6 Wiggins families in Sampson County in 1820 

census records,  Jack was either living with Patsy/Martha, Mary, or William1.  Zilphia Wiggins may also have been one 

of the bastard children of Martha Wiggins.  Or....Zilphia Wiggins may have been the mother of Jack Wiggins' children 

before he married Kitty Williams.  No records have been found yet to answer these questions.

1786 -- Sampson Co, NC, Court Minutes: A bond from Martha Wiggins with Roger Snell and John Roach securities for 

bond for the maintenance of two bastard children of which the said Martha Wiggins hath been delivered taken before 

Thomas Ivey and John Fort, Esquires, was returned by the said justices and ordered to be filed.

1796 -- Sampson Co, NC, Court Minutes, 1784-1800, 9 Feb 1796, child: John Roach came into court and entered into 

bond for 200 pounds with Thomas Sutton as security to indemnify this county from bastard child begotten on the body 

of Martha Wiggins from being charged to wardens.

1975 NOTE:  This file contains family research of Littie Wiggins Stephens and Lathan W. Wiggins.  Records provided 

by E. Chester Wiggins and Lois Wiggins Price.

Note from Freda Thornton, 16 Aug 2001, vze2t8r@verizon.net.  Her husband is kin to Jay Thomas Wiggins and his 

daughter Mary Elizabeth Wiggins that married Freddie T. Thornton.  

***********************************************************************************************************************

Notes regarding Sampson County Wiggins cemetery on the edge of Goshen Swamp:

There is a house nearby the cemetery location. Two Wiggins cousins visited the site of the cemetery and walked over 

to the house to see if they knew anything. The lady didn't know much, but she did give them a copy of an old division of 

land that she thought pertained to that property. Division of land was labeled, "Plat of the Division of Land of Ira Sutton, 

Sampson Co, NC." The shape of the property next to Goshen Swamp and the road in front on the property lends 

credence to it being the old Wiggins land or at least the property next to it. 

_The division of land is for Ira Sutton (b.7 Feb 1876, d. 4 Mar 1944). The names mentioned in the division are Mittie 

Pate, Mrs. W. A. Wheeler, L. H. Sutton, M. E. Sutton, and N. B. Sutton. Ira Sutton, from my limited research, seems to 

have been the son of John Benjamin Sutton and Hepsie Ann Sutton.__Sampson Co, NC, Wiggins Cemetery 

Location, Dallie Road, highway 50:

GPS coordinates taken by Joe Sizemore 2006 of the location of the Wiggins graveyard in Sampson County, on Goshen 

Swamp, between two old oak trees.  Lathan A. Wiggins identified.  Cemetery grown over.  

Oak #1 = N 35 degrees, 25 min, .154 sec    76               47        .369

Oak #2 =     35 degrees, 11          .782           78               14        .75

September 2007 Notes -- B.Wiggins to Wiggins Research Group:

Attached are four documents that may interest you: 
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Wiggins Land on the Headwaters of Goshen Swamp, located with Google Earth: 

Summer two years ago, Lathan led a group of us to the location of the Wiggins land in Sampson Co, NC, to see if we 

could locate/pinpoint the site of the very early Wiggins cemetery where Jack and Kitty Wiggins are buried. I think I have 

located the land using Google Earth. A photo in the files shows the group of us, led by Lathan, marching toward the 

land. Goshen Swamp is to the left of the group, the road (Route 50, Daillie Road) is behind and to the left. As the group 

turns the corner to the left, that is the location of the cemetery, probably in the wooded area in Goshen Swamp beyond, 

between two old oak trees. It was too over-grown to try to locate headstones or signs of graves. I remember Lathan 

noting that the house to the bottom of the Google Earth picture was the home of someone now living on the land. He 

didn't think they had property rights. Lathan did not know who owns the property now.  (Note:  This land was owned in 

1944 by Ira Sutton.  He died and left it to his children.  Ira Sutton was the son of John Benjamin Sutton Jr., grandson of 

John Benjamin Sutton Sr, and great grandson of Thomas Sutton.)

   There is a map of a 1785 project to clear Goshen Swamp so boats could pass. 18th century landowners along 

Goshen Swamp were assigned portions (presumably through the location of their land) for them to clear. Thomas 

Wiggins was assigned section 15. In 1769, Thomas Wiggins purchased 150 acres from John Beck on the north side of 

Goshen Swamp. The question is, of course, is the Thomas Wiggins' land the same land Jack and Kitty Wiggins lived on. 

Betty

NOTE from Lathan A. Wiggins -- Thomas Wiggins bought land in 1769 from John Beck on Goshen Swamp (highway 50, 

west of Faison).  Lathan says Kitty Wiggins was living on that land in 1890. (Note: The link between Thomas Wiggins 

and Jack Wiggins has not been proven.)  

Wiggins Deeds on Goshen Swamp:

1769 -- Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 4, page 197:  John Beck to Thomas Wiggins 14 Jan 1769 2 tracts of land.  First 

150 acres on north side of Goshen Swamp joining Thomas Castellaw.  Second 200 acres joining land between Robert 

Warrens, Moses Tylers, and Samuel Alexander’s lines, 2nd tract 1st land was granted to John Beck by patent dated 27 

April 1767.  Wit: Joseph Slocumb, Naboth Carter.

1775 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 5, page 155:  Thomas Wiggins to John Cartey 28 Mar 1775 150 acres on north 

side of Goshen Swamp joining and between Robert Warren, Moses Tyler, and Samuel Alexander’s line being part of a 

tract of 200 acres patented by John Beck date 27 April 1767.  Wit: Joseph Slocumb, George Norris

1787 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 9, page 179:  Deed of gift - John Roach to George Wiggins (his son-in-law) 20 

March 1787.  George Wiggins given after my decease 160 acres on north side of Goshen Swamp near head of 

Parishes branch including plantation whereon I now dwell.  Patent dated 2 Mar 1775.  Wit: Luke Goodman, Arthur 

Pipkin.

1794 -- Sampson Co, NC, Court Minutes, 1784-1800, 12 Feb 1794, New road… ordered to lay out a road from 

Sampson courthouse to John Beck’s mill on Goshen Swamp…Thomas Wiggins. 

1797 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 10, page 331:  James Bush of Warren Co, Georgia, to George Wiggins 9 Feb 

1797 250 acres being part of a tract of 400 acres patented by James Bush lying on the head of Goshen Swamp 

including the plantation where Thomas Clark formerly lived…beginning on line of said survey by a pond…Manors 

corner, William Wiggins, Goshen Swamp.  Wit: Elias Wiggins, Absolem Cobb.  (Josiah Mainor was living next door to 

William Wiggins in 1790 Sampson Co census.)

1801 -- Sampson Co, NC, Court Minutes, 9 Feb 1801, page 25, ordered that…John Wiggins work on the old road from 

the county line to Goshen Swamp.

1812 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 15, page 278:  I George Wiggins out of love which I have for my son Lewis 

Wiggins (after John Roach’s death) 110 acres on north side of Goshen Swamp on the head of Ragleys branch 

including plantation whereon John Roach now lives…Ragley’s branch to John Roach’s old line…Willis Wiggins’ corner 

then to Ragley’s branch…containing 110 acres.  Wit: Thomas Sutton, Jr., William Creel…Feb term 1812.

1812 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 15, page 283:  I George Wiggins for the love and affection which I have for my 
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son Willis Wiggins grant to him after John Roach’s death 50 acres on the north side of Goshen Swamp near the head of 

Parrish’s branch.  Beginning at the branch above Parrish’s line N. 30 E. 80 poles to Parrish’s corner then S 50 E 80 

poles then N 140 poles then W to branch then down branch to the beginning containing 50 acres by patent 13 March 

1807.  Wit: Thomas Sutton, Jr., William Creel.  Feb term 1812.

1816 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 16, page 473: John Wiggins Deed to Joseph Sutton for 71.75 acres.  28 Jan 1808.  

Between John Wiggins of Sampson and Joseph Sutton 175 dollars land on Goshen Swamp.  Beginning at Goshen 

Swamp then S ?? then N 76 W 1?? Poles then S ? W 109 poles containing 71.75 acres.  Witness: Abraham Haynes, ? 

Haynes.  Signed John Wiggins, Rachel Wiggins, Michael Shirley, Elizabeth Shirley

1819 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 17, page 314:  28 Dec 1818 George Wiggins to Lewis Daughtry for 325 dollars.  

175 acres south of Goshen Swamp.  Beginning on Goshen Swamp Bryan Dawtry’s corner then his line south 25 west 

87 to pound on patent line then said line S 44 W 54 poles to patent corner then N 60 W 164 poles then N 13 W 8 poles 

to Kings line then his line S 64 E 52 poles to his corner then his other line N 55 E 18 poles to his other corner then his 

other line N 43 W 120 poles ? corner along line N 85 E 172 poles to patent line then N 63 E 80 poles to Goshen Swamp 

then along a swamp to beginning.  Containing 175 acres.  Wit: Tho Sutton, B. Dawtry.  Feb term 1819.  In 1850 

Sampson Co census, Bryant Daughtry was 66 years old and living between our Jack and Kitty Wiggins and Thomas 

and Sophia Wiggins.  Our Jack was about 60, and Thomas was 25.)

1824 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 21, page 82:  24 December 1824 between Laban Wiggins and his wife Elizabeth 

of Sampson County and Ceilia Smith…105 dollars…land on the headwaters of Goshen Swamp.  Beginning at John 

Rhodes Roaches former line and runs…to Roaches and Needham Thorntons corner then with Thorntons line to said 

line above the upper field then to William Kings upper corner then with said Kings line to Kings corner then his other line 

to Willoby Creels corner near said Kings line then with said Creels line to Hudsons corner then Hudsons line then his 

other line to Willoby Creels corner said Creels line to Jonathan Daniels and Less Wards former corner then with Wards 

line to Rainers former line then Rainers line to the meadow then to beginning.  Wit: Thos Craddock, Thos Sutton.  

Laban Wiggins his mark, Elizabeth Wiggins.  (Note:  A Laban Wiggins, born 1804, was the son of Elihu Wiggins who 

went to Wilcox Co, Alabama, then to Conecuh Co, Alabama.  That Laban’s wife was Martha born in Alabama, so this is 

another Laban Wiggins.)  (A Jesse Ward and an Isaac Daniel were living near William and Thomas Wiggins in the 1790 

Sampson Co census.)

1827 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 14, page 46:  George Wiggins to Zilpha Wiggins 50 acres on head waters of 

Goshen Swamp.  Beginning at my own land and running with John D. King’s line to Samuel Cherry corner then Samuel 

Cherry’s line to James Hudson line to beginning. …her….21 June 1827.  Wit: Edward Vann, Milly McCullen.

1838 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 26, page 79:  1 August 1838 between John Wiggins of Sampson County planter 

and David Oats for 75 dollars land on east side of Goshen Swamp bounded by lines James Hutchins and Sarah Janes 

and James Sutton and William Sutton.  Containing 71 acres.  Wit:  Jesse B. Wiggins, Guilford Bradshaw.   (NOTE:  In 

the 1850 census, John “Jack” Wiggins and family were living next door to James Sutton and William Sutton.)

1885 -- Deed Book 64, Page #496 -Kitty Wiggins, Martha Hinson and TJ Wiggins of the county of Sampson…twenty 

five dollars to us in hand paid by GW Wiggins, BJ Wiggins, RR Wiggins, and JS Wiggins…sold… land situated in 

Sampson County…bounded north by lands of James Sutton, on the west by the rim? of Goshen Swamp, on the south 

by the land of WR King, on the east by WR King, WR Sutton and Ann M. Sutton’s lands said to contain about seventy 

acres…Kitty A. Wiggins, Martha Ann Hinson and Thomas J. Wiggins …March 30th, 1885.  

1888 - Page #598 -- Catherine Wiggins to Henry Faison…mortgage deed…23 day of February 1888 and registered  in 

Book 77, p 167 Sampson County sixty two and one half acres.  (This deed is very hard to read but it is for land owned 

by Catherine “Kitty” Wiggins, widow of John “Jack” Wiggins.  Kitty Wiggins forfeited on this mortgage in 1891.)  

********************************************************

Census Records for John "Jack" Wiggins:
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1800 Census:

John “Jack” Wiggins was about 5-10 yrs old in 1800.  Of the 6 Wiggins families in Sampson County, he was either living 

with Patsy/Martha, Mary, or William1, if census records are accurate.

1810 Census:

Only 4 Wiggins families in Sampson County in 1810: 

pg  496 -- Willis Wiggins     

pg  496 -- Lewis Wiggins    

pg  473 -- Elihu Wiggins     

pg  472 -- Elijah Wiggins   

(Where are John Wiggins age 20 and George Wiggins age 59?  Did they emigrate to Tennessee with the Sampson 

County wagon train and then come back to Sampson County by 1820?)

1820 Census, Capt Westbrook's District, Sampson Co, NC:  -- (Is this our John Wiggins age 30, listed HOH?)

male 26-45 -- John Wiggins, (born between 1775 and 1794), (Jack probably born 1790, age 30)

male 10-16 -- son #1 -- born 1804-1810 (maybe son Jesse?)

male 0-10 -- son #2 born 1810-1820 (born about 1815?) who is this?

female 16-26 -- (1st wife, name unknown, born between 1796 and 1804)

female 0-10 -- daughter #1 -- born 1810-1820

female 0-10 -- daughter #2 -- born 1810-1820 (maybe Anna, new born?)

foreigners not naturalized -- 1 (who was this who was listed as a "foreigner"?)

1830 Census, Sampson Co, NC: -- (Is this John Wiggins age 40, head of household?)

Male 40-49 -- HOH John Wiggins (born between 1781 and 1790)

Male 20-29 -- son #1 born 1804-1810 (maybe Jesse?)

Male 0-4 -- son #3 born 1826-1830 (maybe Major Hinton age 6?) 

Female 30-39 -- 1st wife born between 1790 and 1800, age 36

Female 15-19 -- daughter #1 born 1811-1815

Female 10-14 -- daughter #2 born 1816-1820 

Female 5-9 -- dau #3 born 1821-1825 (maybe Anna age 10?)

Female 5-9 -- dau # 4 born 1821-1825 (maybe Mariah newborn?)

1838 - Sampson Co, NC, Deed Book 26, page 79:  1 August 1838 between John Wiggins of Sampson County planter 

and David Oats for 75 dollars land on east side of Goshen Swamp bounded by lines James Hutchins and Sarah Janes 

and James Sutton and William Sutton.  Containing 71 acres.  Wit:  Jesse B. Wiggins, Guilford Bradshaw.   (NOTE:  In 

the 1850 census, John “Jack” Wiggins and family were living next door to James Sutton and William Sutton.)  (NOTE:  

In 1885, Kitty Wiggins sold "approximately 70 acres of land.")

1840 Census, Sampson Co, NC: -- John Wiggins, head of household

Male 50-59 -- HOH, John Wiggins, (born between 1781 and 1790), probable age 50

Male 10-14 -- son born 1824-1830 (maybe Major Hinton age 16?  MJ was married in1848 & was HOH in 1850.)

Male 0-4 -- son born 1836-1840 (Henry, age 3 shown on 1850 census as 13, household of Jack & Kitty.)

Female 40-49 -- first wife born between 1790 and 1800

Female 15-19 -- maybe daughter Anna age 20?

Female 10-14 -- daughter 

1850 Census, Northern Division, Sampson Co, NC: 

John Wiggins, 50, Farmer (age probably 60), real estate $100

Kitty Wiggins, 25 (2nd wife)

Mariah Wiggins, 20  (John's daughter by a previous marriage)

Edith Wiggins, 1 (John and Kitty's 1st child)

Henry Wiggins, 13 (John's son by a previous marriage)

Following are all Wigginses & related families in Sampson Co, NC, in 1850 census:
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Northern District:

......Martha Wiggins (black) age 14, living with Samuel Mainer

......Bennett Williams, age 50, Sally 26, Elizabeth 17 (Kitty's father & mother)

......John Wiggins 26 and Ducksey Wiggins 31 

......Lewis Wiggins 64, Rachel 64, Ann King 33, Mary Wiggins 34, Sylvany Wiggins 23, Lewis Wiggins 20, Susan King 2

......John Wiggins 50, Kitty Wiggins 25, Mariah Wiggins 20, Edith Wiggins 1, Henry Wiggins 13

......Thomas Wiggins 25, Sophia Wiggins 20, Mary Wiggins 3, James Wiggins 1

......Major Wiggins 26, Caroline Wiggins 22, George Wiggins 9mos, Anna Wiggins 31, Zilphia Wiggins 55

Southern District:  NOTE -- No Wigginses in the Southern District of Sampson County, NC, in 1850 census.

1860 census, (Northern division, Piney Grove District, Bennet's X Roads Post Office), Sampson Co, NC:

John  Wiggins, 70, Wheelright, value of R.E. $200, value of personal estate $125, born in NC

Catherine Wiggins, 30, born in NC

Edith C. Wiggins, 10, attended school within the year

Martha A. Wiggins, 8, attended school within the year

George W. Wiggins, 5, attended school within the year

Benjamin J. Wiggins, 2

1863 -- Note from Lathan Wiggins file:

"Sampson Co, NC, Wills or Deeds, 1863 -- Martha Ann Hinson Wiggins" -- what is this?

1867 -- John Wiggins voted in 1867.

1868 -- John Wiggins died. Note from Lathan Wiggins:  John Wiggins died the year Josiah Wiggins was born (1868).

Kitty Wiggins died between the births of son Henry Roland Wiggins' daughters Lillian and Clarisa (1899).

NOTE:  See 1870 census showing widow Kitty Wiggins and children living on Wiggins property on Goshen Swamp.

1888 -- Survey of land of John Wiggins, deceased, his heirs, George, etc.  Division of property to heirs of John Wiggins.

1888 -- Deed Book 83, pages 168-170 -- February 2 -- Benjamin J. Wiggins and wife Susan sell land left to him by his 

father, Jack Wiggins.

***********************

Rootsweb Message Board, Sampson Co, NC:

TO:  Kitsie Wiggins

FROM:  Betty Wiggins

DATE:  20 Sep 2005

Kitsie,

Have you found any more information about Thomas Wiggins and Sophia Jane Carroll of Sampson Co, NC, and their 

daughter Eliza Jane who married William Edward Strickland?  I am working on some new information that points to my 

John "Jack" Wiggins as the father of your Thomas Wiggins.....I do know that Thomas and Sophia Wiggins lived a few 

houses away from John and Kitty Wiggins.

WIFE

-

Catherine A. "Kitty" WILLIAMS

Kitty Williams' Story:

     We don't know much about Catherine Ann Elizabeth "Kitty" Williams as a person. According to the census records, 

she was born about 1823, probably in Sampson Co, NC, because that is where her parents Bennett Williams (abt 1787-

after 1880) and Keren Jordan (abt 1801-abt 1835) raised their 5 children.

     Kitty Williams married John "Jack" Wiggins in Sampson Co, NC, about 1848. She is shown for the first time as wife 

of Jack in the 1850 Sampson County census. In the 1850 census, John "Jack" gives his age as 50, but in the 1860 

census he gives his age as 70, which was his probable age. So 23-year-old Kitty married a much older man. It seems 

to have been a happy marriage. They raised 7 children, 6 of whom we know lived to adulthood (Martha Ann, George 

William, Benjamin Jeams, Thomas Jay Lathan, Richard Rufus, and Josiah). 

     Jack seems to have had grown children and one teenager when Kitty married him. The 1850 census shows Jack 
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Wiggins age "50," Kitty Wiggins age 25, Mariah Wiggins age 20, Edith Wiggins age 1 (Edith probably was Jack and 

Kitty's first child), and Henry Wiggins age 13. If you go back into the 1840, 1830, and 1820 censuses (and if all these 

John Wiggins' are our John Wiggins), you see that Jack may have had as many as 8 children with a previous wife.

By the 1860 census, Jack and "Catherine" had only their 4 children in the household--Edith C. (Catherine?) age 10, 

Martha A. age 8, George W. age 5, and Benjamin J. age 2. They were to have one more child, Josiah, born the same 

year his father died, 1867. (Note in file of Lathan A. Wiggins -- "Kitty Wiggins died between the birth of Lillian and 

Clarissa (children of Henry Roland Wiggins). Kitty Wiggins is buried in the Wiggins graveyard near Sutton Town. Wm 

Henry Bordeau and Annie (Loyal Wiggins) Bordeau took care of her during her later life. Annie was George William 

Wiggins's daughter. Jim Bordeau, was the son of Wm H."

     In the 1870 census, Catherine A. E. "Kitty" Wiggins age 47 is a widow raising her 5 children alone on the headwaters 

of the Goshen Swamp land in Sampson County. By the 1880 census, Kitty's 3 younger children were still living with her. 

Benjamin J. had married "Sauson" (Susan Catherine Warrick) and they had their 2 sons Julius J. and Henry Roland 

living with them next door to Kitty on the same land. Also, Kitty's son George and his wife Ann and small daughter were 

living next door. They were in separate households, so we can suppose that when sons Benjamin J. and George 

married, Kitty let them build their own houses on the Goshen Swamp land.

In 1888, Kitty Wiggins had the land surveyed and mortgaged her Goshen Swamp land. Shortly before that time, her son 

Benjamin Jeams Wiggins was involved in an incident that resulted in the killing of a black man. Family legend accounts 

said it was self-defense, but the law didn’t see it that way. Benjamin Jeams Wiggins left North Carolina one step ahead 

of the law. He came and went several times in the next few years. About 1889, he left for good and was never heard 

from again. Kitty Wiggins forfeited on the mortgage in 1891. She died in 1899.

     2008 Note to file: With the help of look-up volunteer Linda Klocker of Gaston County, we have found a B. J. Wiggins 

in Gaston County, NC, who was born about 1857 and died in 1926. This B.J. fathered James A. in 1887 and married 

Frances ___ about 1894; they had son Lloyd in 1897. It looks like the B.J. of Gaston County was a slippery cuss and he 

changed his name a lot. In the 1900 census for Iredell County, he is listed as David J. and he is with his wife Frances 

and sons James A. (born 1887) and Lloyd V. (born 1897). In the 1910 census, he is in the Rowan Co, NC, census as "

Robert." He has Frances with him and son Lloyd. In 1920, he is in Gaston County as William J. Wiggins, wife Frances, 

and "boarder" Lloyd Wiggins, with Lloyd's wife Texie and their son Norman. In the 1930 census, there is a widow 

Frances Wiggins, living in Gaston Co with grandson Wayne Johnson. B. J. of Gaston County died in 1926. Our B. J. 

Wiggins came and went from the Sampson County family home starting about 1882. He came back home in 1884, in 

1885 and in 1888. He left for the last time in 1889 and was not heard from again. Family legend says he went south, to 

Alabama, Georgia, or Florida. It has always bothered me that he came home and went so frequently when he was 

supposed to be that far south. It makes more sense if he was in Gastonia. That's about 200 miles due west of Sampson 

County. This needs further research in Gaston County.

********************************************************

1870 Census, Sampson Co, NC:

Wiggings, Catherine A. E., 47, keeping house, $30, $225 (husband John "Jack" Wiggins died in 1867.)

Wiggings, Martha Ann, 19

Wiggings, Geo. William, 18

Wiggings, Benjamin James, 12

Wiggings, Thomas J. Lathan, 9

Wiggings, Richard Rufus, 8

Wiggings, Josiah, 3

1880 Census, Piney Grove, Sampson Co, NC:  (Family note: Log cabin on the headwaters of Goshen Swamp.)

Kitty Wiggins, 51, widow

Thomas J. Wiggins, son, 19

Richard R. Wiggins, son 14

Josiah Wiggins, son 13

(son Benjamin J. Wiggins and family are living next door.)

DB _)__, page 496, March 30, 1885, Sampson Co, NC, deed, K. A. Wiggins & others to G. W. Wiggins & others: 

Kitty A. Wiggins, Martha Ann Hinson, and Thomas J. Wiggins of the county of Sampson....sum of twenty five dollars to 
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us in hand paid by G. W. Wiggins, B. J. Wiggins, R. R. Wiggins and J. S. Wiggins...all that tract or lot of land situated in 

Sampson County...to wit: on the north by lands of James Sutton, on the west by the rim Goshen Swamp, on the south 

by the land of W. R. King, on the east by W. R. King, W. R. Sutton and Ann M. Sutton ... said to contain 70 acres.

(NOTE:  Mother Kitty A. Wiggins, dau, Martha Ann Wiggins Hinson, and son Thomas J. Lathan Wiggins appear to sell a 

portion of their land inherited from John "Jack" Wiggins to son George W. Wiggins, son Benjamin J. Wiggins, son 

Richard Rufus Wiggins and son Josiah S. Wiggins.) 

1888 -- #598, 23 Feb 1888, Catherine Wiggins to Henry E. Faison...mortgage deed...by N. T. Creel, wife Ida E. L. Creel..

.Book 77, page 169...on the waters of ... and bounded as follows: Beginning at a sweet gum in Jasb..? line...nse24 to a .

..said n.9E 26 poles ...N29E...nne54......nnw43...Vann line...S77e...containing sixty two and one half acres...Catherine 

Wiggins...23 day of July 1891...witness G. W. Wiggins.

1892 -- Thomas J. Lathan Wiggins died.  By 1904 his widow, Amy Wiggins, had applied to the county for the support of 

herself, one grandchild and 8 grown Negroes.  

By 1900, Jack and Kitty's son Josiah S. Wiggins had moved to Texas, on his way to Oklahoma.  

Jack and Kitty Wiggins TIMELINE:

1867 John "Jack" Wiggins votes in Sampson Co, NC.

1868 John "Jack" Wiggins dies.

1870 Census Kitty Wiggins, 5 sons, 1 dau, living on Wiggins land on Goshen Swamp in Sampson Co, near Suttontown.

1880 Census Kitty and sons living on Wiggins land on Goshen Swamp. (and son Benj and son George are on each 

side)

1882 son Benjamin J. Wiggins left home the first time.  Went to Florida by way of Lynchburg, Va.

1884 BJ Wiggins came back.

1885 Kitty, dau Martha Ann Hinson, son T.J.L. Wiggins, sold 70 acres (more or less) to sons G.W., B.J., R.R., and J.S. 

Wiggins.

1888 Kitty has land surveyed "1888 -- Survey of land of John Wiggins, deceased, his heirs, George, etc."

1888 Kitty mortgaged 62.5 acres

1891 Kitty forfeited on mortgage

1892 son Thomas Jay Lathan Wiggins dies.

1899 Kitty Wiggins dies; is buried either in Wiggins Cemetery on Goshen Swamp or near Falling Creek Methodist 

Church, small abandoned overgrown spot near church.

CHILD  1

-

Edith Catherine WIGGINS

Nothing is known about Edith Catherine Wiggins, except that she was the first child of Jack Wiggins and Kitty Williams.  

She is 1 year old in the 1850 census and 10 years old in the 1860 census.  1860 census says she was attending 

school.  She does not appear in the 1870 census with mother Kitty Wiggins.

CHILD  2

-

Martha Ann WIGGINS

Note from Lathan Wiggins file:  Sampson Co, NC, Wills or Deeds:

1863 -- Martha Ann Wiggins Hinson  ???  What is this document?

Sampson Co, NC, DB, pg 496, names "Martha Ann Hinson...Sampson County" as a participant; so Martha Ann was still 

living in Sampson County on March 30, 1885 and was married to Jesse Hinson.

1885 -- DB __, Page #496 -Kitty Wiggins, Martha Hinson and TJ Wiggins of the county of Sampson…twenty five dollars 

to us in hand paid by GW Wiggins, BJ Wiggins, RR Wiggins, and JS Wiggins…sold… land situated in Sampson 

County…bounded north by lands of James Sutton, on the west by the rim? of Goshen Swamp, on the south by the land 

of WR King, on the east by WR King, WR Sutton and Ann M. Sutton’s lands said to contain about seventy acres…Kitty 

A. Wiggins, Martha Ann Hinson and Thomas J. Wiggins …March 30th, 1885.  

Old Family Group Sheet from Lathan A. Wiggins file:

   Jessie Hinson married Martha Ann Wiggins, daughter of Jack Wiggins and Kitty Williams.
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   They had 4 children:  Raiford, Mary, Maggie, Metcher.

Note:  No further information has been found on Martha Ann Wiggins Hinson.

CHILD  3

-

George William WIGGINS

1880 Census, Piney Grove, Sampson Co, NC::

Geo. Wiggins, 26

Ann E. Wiggins, wife, 27

Ann L. Wiggins, dau, 4

Lauetta Wiggins, dau, 2

1900 Census, Piney Grove, Sampson Co, NC:

George W. Wiggins, Jan 1853, 46, married 25 years

Anna E. Wiggins, wife, Feb 1845, 55, married 25 years

Etta Wiggins, dau, Jan 1880, 20

Thomas Wiggins, son, Oct 1880, 19

1910 Census, Halls, Sampson Co, NC:

George Wiggins, 57, married 35 years, 

Anja..? Wiggins, wife, 65, married 35 years, 4 children/3 living

Tom Wiggins, son, 29, married 7 yrs

Bettie Wiggins, dau, 28, married 7 yrs, 3 children/3 living

Albert Wiggins, son-in-law, 7

Allen Wiggins, son-in-law, 5

Clarence Wiggins, son-in-law, 2

1916 -- Sampson Co, NC, Wills:

G. W. Wiggins to W. T. Wiggins, his son, and daughters Anne Bordeau and Etta McCullen.

From: "pfaulk@shumate-faulk.com"

To: B Wiggins 

Sent: Sunday, August 10, 2008 11:29:34 PM

Subject: Re: Wiggins connection

Accoding to some info I ran across within the past few days, John "Jack" Wiggins and his wife, Catherine (Kitty), were 

the parents of George William Wiggins (1853-1917) who was married to Ann Elizer Royals.  They were parents to my 

great grandmother, Annie L. Wiggins who married William Henry Bordeaux.  I assume that most, or all, of the above 

were in the Sampson County area of NC.  My grandmother was Maybell Bordeaux (1895-1949) married to William 

Emmett Warrick~~they were in the Wayne County area of NC.  I had not really delved into the Wiggins line much further 

than my great grandparents because other lines of the family were "much" easier to trace and study.  When I fell onto 

the material that took me back to "Jack" it simply renewed my interest in the entire lineage.

Thank you  in advance for any assistance or directives you can help me with.  Pat Batten

From: Pat Batten

To: B Wiggins 

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2008 9:59:14 AM

Betty, your notes are a true gift!!!  So many trips back to Sampson County won't be necessary~~~trips can now be 

adventures rather than frustrations. My grandparents actually had 12 children, one was still born.  The other 11 thrived.  

The first child, my aunt Elizabeth, died following the birth of her second child from a terrible postpartum infection.  My 

mother adored her big sister and struggled for years with her death.  Interesting, two months following the death, my 

mother (about 16), along with another sister and Elizabeth's daughter, 5 year old Margie, were in the field "chopping" 

when they decided to see Elizabeth again~~~then and there they used their hoes to uncover the casket lid,opened it, 

and spent time "talking" with their sister.  None carries any ill effects from that and even the 5 year old was happy to see 

her mother.  Although I've never spent any time researching my granddaddy's imprisonment, it has never been a secret 

that he spent time in prison and was actually imprisoned when my mother, Lettie Mae, was born.  The story surrounding 
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that was that he had gone to a lower pasture to get the cows home and was arrested by revenuers who were hiding 

near a "still".  Following a period of time, he was said to be exonerated and returned home.  I'm not sure he ever owned 

a still but I do know for a fact that he loved home-made and kept it somewhere around the house all the time.  Mother 

always thought he was in prison in Raleigh but your notes indicate Atlanta which could be completely correct.  My great 

grandmother was Sally Jane Hudson, mother of Emmett, and I do have lineage notes on her but they are in my 

computer "at my other home".  If you would like those, I'll send them on when we return this weekend.   Following my 

husbands' deaths, I married my high school and college sweetheart last year.  We live between our two home:  Dudley, 

NC and Kernersville.  We travel between the two each week, spending the latter part of the week at home in Dudley~~

~that way we can share time with our children and grandchildren in each location.  Pat

CHILD  4

-

Benjamin Jeams WIGGINS

NOTE to file from B.Wiggins 2008:

I have tried to capture ALL memories of Benjamin Jeams Wiggins that were available, for clues on finding where he 

went.  Some notes contradict others.  Perhaps these random memories will fall together someday, and we will solve the 

Benjamin Jeams Wiggins puzzle.

*********************************************

Note from Lathan Wiggins 1972:

"Benjamin Jeams Wiggins left home about 1890 to find work, when son Roland was 12-14 years old.  A year later, he 

wrote from SC--Monks Corner, Charleston, Charles Island, then was not heard from.  The family's tracing of him led to 

the discovery that he had a new family, which he also later abandoned.  Years later he was discovered in Georgia and 

disappeared yet again, only to show up many years later in SC.  He died before his NC family could see him.

He may have gone to Bartow, GA.  May have been sheriff or chief of police about 1932; had a farm with 5 children.  

Wife Susan Catherine Warrick Wiggins got a letter from him postmarked Lynchburg, VA.  Benjamin Jeams Wiggins was 

a carpenter; took his job away from home.  1932, "Progressive Farmer" magazine may have had article about Wiggins 

as sheriff.  A school teacher in Greenville knew a B. J. Wiggins in Bartow, GA.  Josephine Williams has him down as 

born 1857 instead of 1850.  Aunt Littie Wiggins Stevens did the temple work.  No one has been able to find out where 

Benjamin Jeams Wiggins went."

Fall 1975 -- Notes from Lathan A. Wiggins:

Benjamin Jeams Wiggins left home when he was about 35 years old, about 1890.  Went to Bartow, GA.  A school 

teacher in Greenville knew a B.J. Wiggins.  He had a family, 5 children.  Benjamin Jeams Wiggins was a carpenter.  

Took his job away from home.  Benjamin Jeams Wiggins' grandfather(?), Thomas Wiggins, bought land "bordering on 

Goshen Swamp" in Sampson Co, NC, in 1767 from John Beck (land grant to Beck).  This land is about 2 miles west of 

Suttontown, NC, on Goshen Swamp.  .  It is now Highway 50, west of Faison, NC.  Thomas Wiggins' grandson John "

Jack" Wiggins was living on that land when he died, and it was left to his wife Catherine A. E. Williams Wiggins.  

The Wiggins family can be traced from 2 Wiggins brothers, Thomas and William or Willis and John, depending on which 

source you use.  A Wiggins age 20 came over on the ship Jo Severn, from London, August 1635.  (Hotten's "List of 

Persons of Quality who came to America 1600-1700."  He settled in Nansemond Co, VA, then moved to Edenton/

Martin Co, NC, then moved to Sampson Co, NC. 

7/13/05 -- Conversation with Lathan A. Wiggins, Mt Olive, NC -- My grandfather, Benjamin Jeams Wiggins, had a 

unique handwriting--shaded, beautiful handwriitng.  Aumt Littie had the same handwriting.

1/21/06 -- Conversation with Lathan A. Wiggins:  

1882 -- Roland was 4 yrs old when his father left the 1st time.  His father Benjamin Jeams Wiggins was 35 yrs old.  

Mother (Susan Catherine) received letter from husband 2 weeks later, postmarked Lynchburg, VA.  BJ then went to 

Florida.  Only support he ever sent was a box of oranges.  Wife Susan Catherine and her older children worked in fields 

of others to support the family.  BJ had relatives in Florida and in Georgia.  1884 -- BJ came home again.  Stayed about 

4 yrs.  Built a house.  Another child was born.  1890 -- BJ left for the last time when son Roland was 12 years old.  

Never heard from again.

1/21/06 -- Converation with Lathan A. Wiggins while cataloging his genealogy collection:  

In Roland Wiggins' diary, he notes: "At this time I must have been about 4 years old (Roland was born 1878). My father 
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had become a heavy drinking man, and he got into some trouble, and he wouldn't be arrested, and he began to hide 

out, and from then on he was in and out for several years. Brought much trouble and sorrow on my mother, although he 

came home and stayed off and on for about 4 years and helped to build us a house.  (Note:  By all accounts, Benjamin 

Jeams Wiggins was a cruel man.  He beat his wife Susie.  His sons dreaded to see him come home.  BJ would chase 

Jules and Roland down the corn rows.  The one who didn't win was switched.) 

TIMELINE on BJ: 

1880 Census -- Ben J. Wiggins, wife "Sauson" and 2 sons, Julius and Roland were a separate household, living on the 

Wiggins land in Sampson Co, NC. Mother Kitty and brothers T.J.Lathan, Rufus, and Josiah were next door. 

1881 -- BJ and Susan's daughter Paulina May was born. 

1882 -- Roland was 4 yrs old when father left the 1st time "to find work." Susan Catherine received letter 2 weeks later, 

postmarked Lynchburg, VA. Stayed gone 2-3 weeks and came home. 

1882 -- BJ left again. Went to Florida. He had relatives in Florida, Alabama, and Georgia. Only support he sent was a 

box of oranges. BJ was a carpenter and may have taken his job with him. 

1884 -- BJ came home again. Stayed about 4 yrs. Built a house. Another child was born. 

1885 -- BJ was at home. He and brothers George, Rufus, and Josiah paid $25 and bought Sampson County land from 

mother Kitty and sister Martha Wiggins Hinson and brother Thomas Jay Lathan Wiggins. Another child, daughter Littie 

Vaker, was born. Daughter Essie Pender Wiggins was born in 1887. 

1888 -- According to HR Wiggins testimony, "I began to go to Sunday School at the age of about nine and one-half 

years.  My father came home the first Sunday that I went to church and he was about to get on me because I went to 

Sunday School; but the next Sunday he was gone from home."

1888 -- Feb 2 -- BJ at home. Sold to Thomas J. Sutton "my interest in the land of my Father Jack Wiggins...for $25....

about 15 acres."

1888 -- Mother Kitty Wiggins took out a mortgage on her 62 acres of land. (Did she need money to give to BJ to hide 

out?) 

1890 -- BJ left for the last time when son Roland was 12 years old. Never heard from again. BJ's brother Josiah 

Wiggins was in Alabama in 1890 and married to an Alabama girl. They had a child in 1892 born in Alabama. 

1891 -- mother Kitty Wiggins forfeited on mortgaged Sampson County land.

1898 -- Nathan Thomas Creel left NC and moved to Coffee Co, Georgia. NT Creel's daughter Rosa was born in 

Georgia in 1898. Creels were related to Susan Catherine Warrick Wiggins.  Susan C. Warrick Wiggins was raised by 

Sallie Ann Creel, Nathan Thomas Creel's mother.  NT Creel and Benjamin Jeams Wiggins were about the same age 

and may have been involved in the same incident.  

1899 -- mother Kitty died. 

1900 Census -- Susan C. Warrick Wiggins was living with her son Julius Wiggins and daughter Littie Wiggins in 

Grantham, Wayne County. Evidently, the last of the Goshen Swamp Wiggins property had been sold. 

1900 -- Shortly after 1900, Nathan T. Creel and family moved back to NC.  

Where did Benjamin Jeams Wiggins go? 

A lady named Beverly Sanders Clark wrote to Lathan Wiggins asking about her ancestor, Josiah Wiggins. She thought 

her Josiah Wiggins was our Josiah Wiggins, brother of BJ Wiggins. (NOTE: We think her Josiah was not BJ's brother. 

He was the son of Major Hinton Wiggins, who may have been BJ's half brother from John "Jack" Wiggins' first marriage.

) Beverly writes: "Sometime before 1900, he (her Josiah Wiggins) and his family moved to Darlington, SC, after 

someone supposedly was run out of NC for killing a black man." Beverly said her grandfather said his grandfather 

(Josiah) told him it was self-defense and they had to leave NC.  Our Josiah Wiggins went to Alabama before 1892, then 

to Darlington, SC, before 1900, then to Texas, and later died in Oklahoma. His daughters who came to see Lathan 

Wiggins and Aunt Littie in the 1960s were Jodie and Inez. Jodie was born in Alabama in 1892 and Inez was born in 

Texas in 1902. 

Another clue -- I noticed in one of the files this was written on a small piece of paper: 

"Sally Ann Creel (Nath. T. Creel) 1/2 sister of Susan C. Warrick, born 1851, died 1929. Raised Susan Warrick." 

Last night, I did a little research to see who these Creels were. Turns out a Nathan Thomas Creel married Ida L. ___ 

about 1886 in Wayne Co, NC. Shortly after that, they moved to Coffee Co, GA.  They had a daughter Rosa Maribella 

who was born 1898 in Coffee Co, Georgia.  Their son Willie was born in 1903 in Wayne County, NC, so they stayed 

less than 4 years. By the 1910 census, the Creel family was back in Wayne Co, NC. Why did the Creels suddenly pick 
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up and leave Wayne County about 1897, move to Georgia, and then move back to Wayne County by 1903? 

*************************************************************************************************

1860 census, Bennett Store township of Wayne Co, NC:

John  Wiggins, 70, Wheelright, $200 real estate, $125 personal estate, NC

Catherine Wiggins, 30, NC

Edith G. Wiggins, 10, NC

Martha A. Wiggins, 8, NC

George W. Wiggins, 5, NC

Benjamin J., 2, NC

1870 Census, Sampson Co, NC:

Wiggings, Catherine A. E., 47, keeping house (Husband John "Jack" Wiggins died about 1867.)

Wiggings, Martha Ann, 19

Wiggings, Geo. William, 18

Wiggings, Benjamin James, 12 

Wiggings, Thomas J. Lathan, 9

Wiggings, Richard Rufus, 8

Wiggings, Josiah, 3

1880 Census, Piney Grove, Sampson Co, NC:

Kitty Wiggins, 51, widow

Thomas J. Wiggins, son, 19

Richard R. Wiggins, son 14

Josiah Wiggins, son 13

Son Benjamin next door in 1880:

Ben J. Wiggins, 22, laborer

Sauson Wiggins, wife, 30

Julius J. Wiggins, son, 3

Henry R. Wiggins, son, 1

(other son George Wiggins next door in 1880)

???1888 -- A Benjamin J. Wiggins patented 160 acres in Montgomery, AL, as "homestead entry" on 4 Feb 1888 

(Bureau of Land Management, doc # 4897).

ALABAMA LAND RECORDS:

Name:

BENJAMIN J WIGGINS




Document Number:

4897 




Total Acres:

159.48 

 


Misc. Doc. Nr.:

9768 




Canceled Document:
No 




Issue Date:

February 04, 1888 




Mineral Rights Reserved:
No 




Metes and Bounds:

No 




Statutory Reference:
12 Stat. 392 




Multiple Warantee Names:
No 




Act or Treaty:

May 20, 1862 




Multiple Patentee Names:
No 




Entry Classification:

Homestead Entry Original 




Land Description:

1 E½SE

ST STEPHENS
No
7N
13E
26




                2 SWSE

ST STEPHENS
No
7N
13E
26


                3 

SESW

ST STEPHENS
No
7N
13E
26
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???2 April 2004 -- Corresponded by email with Tommy D. Wiggins and Lin B. Clark about their ancestor, James 

Benjamin Wiggins (b. 19 Dec 1851, Alabama, died 31 Dec 1917 in Johnson, TX.  This James Benjamin Wiggins 

married Mary Elizabeth Stovall about 1870 and had children Polly, Martha Louise, Alice L., William David, Emma W., 

James Franklin, George Washington, John Louallen, Mary Elizabeth, Floyd Columbus, and Benjamin Louis Wiggins.   

Also corresponded with Cathy Ann Wiggins Smith in the 1970s.  Her grandfather was James Benjamin Wiggins, born 

Aug 1918 in Texas.  He died Dec 30, 1980 in Lawton, OK.  He was the son of Floyd C. Wiggins, born 2 Feb 1895, 

Texas, died 5 Aug 1934, Texas.  Floyd was the son of James Benjamin Wiggins, born 19 Dec 1851, Alabama, died 31 

Dec 1917, in Texas.  NOTE:  Probably not our Benjamin Jeams Wiggins.

???Genforum Query:

JAMES BENJAMIN WIGGINS b.Dec 19 1851 GA



Posted by: KATHERINE DENDY 
Date: April 21, 2000 at 13:25:35



Looking for the parents of James Benjamin Wiggins. James married Mary Elizabeth Stovall born Apr 22 1855 GA and 

died Sept 18 1933 in Johnson Co TX. James died Dec 31 1917 Ellis Co TX.  Also Looking for information on the 

children of Benjamin Wiggins who married Sara Ann Rhodes, Feb 28 1845 in Green Co GA.  This information was in 

the "History of Green Co, GA" By Rice & Williams.  

???Genforum Query:

Re: JAMES BENJAMIN WIGGINS b.Dec 19 1851 GA



Posted by: joann wiggins huegele
Date: July 27, 2000 at 13:43:32


In Reply to: JAMES BENJAMIN WIGGINS b.Dec 19 1851 GA  by KATHERINE DENDY



Hi, James Benjamin Wiggins and Mary E. Stovall were my great-grandparents. I have a list of their children and a little 

more info. If you're interested, send me an e-mail. I don't want to duplicate the info you already have. I don't know the 

parents of James Benjamin Wiggins either._Joann

1900 Census, Grantham, Wayne co, NC:

Julius J. Wiggins, 24

Susan W. Wiggins, mother, 53  (husband Benjamin Jeams Wiggins is gone; land in Sampson Co has been sold)

Littie V. Wiggins, sister, 15

*****************************************

???2007 -- BWiggins Note:  The following Benjamin J. Wiggins shows up in Johnson Co, GA, for the first time in the 

1900 census.  He is married to Mattie _____.  He told the census taker he had been married 16 years, which would 

have been 1884.  Our Benjamin Jeams Wiggins left for the second time in 1882.  He came back home about 1884 and 

stayed about 4 years.  He left for the final time about 1890.  The first child of this BJ Wiggins was conceived about 

October 1884.  The second child was conceived three years later, about August 1887. 

???1900 Census, Pardella Township, Johnson Co, GA: 

Benjamin J. Wiggins, born Sep 1866, 33, married 16 years, GA/GA/GA

Mattie Wiggins, wife, born Apr 1867, 33, married 16 years, 2 children, 2 living, GA/GA/GA

Annie M. Wiggins, dau, born May 1885, 15, GA/GA/GA

Elizabeth Wiggins, dau, born Apr 1888, 12, GA/GA/GA

???1910 Census, Powell, Johnson Co, GA:

Benjamin J. Wiggins, 44, married 26 years, GA/GA/GA, laborer

Mattie Wiggins, wife, 42, 2 children/2 living, GA/GA/GA

???1920 Census, Powell, Johnson Co, GA:

B. J. Wiggins, HOH, owns his home, has a mortgage, 52, married, can read & write, GA/GA/GA,  farmer, general farm

Mattie Wiggins, wife, 49, married, can read & write, GA/GA/GA

???1930 Census, Powell, Johnson Co, GA:

B. J. Wiggins, HOH, lives on a farm, married at 18, GA/GA/GA, farmer, general farm
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Mattie P. Wiggins, wife, 58, married at 15, GA/GA/GA

Lema Wiggins, daughter, 41, widow, GA/GA/GA

The above Benjamin J. Wiggins is listed in Familysearch.org as born 13 Sep 1864 in GA, married about 1889, died 31 

Dec 1939 in Georgia.  He was married to Mattie P. ___, born 14 Apr 1866, died 26 Jan 1936 in Georgia.

???2007 Note:  "Ben Wiggins Place" -- Johnson-Jefferson County GaArchives Cemeteries.....James Allen Davis 

cemetery - Complete Survey.  The James Allen Davis cemetery is located just over the County line in Jefferson County.  

From the Ben Wiggins place go directly north towards Bartow, Ga. for about 5 miles.  Go across a gravel road, but 

continue on the dirt road and look along the right side of the road for a granite marker that is about ten feet over a fence 

in a wooded area.  The marker will read "Davis Family cemetery-est. 1882 by James A. & Alice W. Davis-containing 3 

acres." Also note the three acres are marked off with white cement post aobut three feet high. You cannot see the 

graves from the marker.  Park your car and walk up a small road within the land markers.  The graves are fenced in with 

a fence and located in a wooded spot on a knoll.

******************************************************************************

2008 NOTE:

From: Betty Wiggins

To: Gunter, Agness Wiggins

Sent: Wednesday, February 06, 2008 10:31 AM 

Subject: David J. Wiggins and B. J. Wiggins 

The material that you sent me from the History of Swain Co, NC, was great. And after reading, it leads me to believe 

that the Swain County David J. was a different person. The B. J. Wiggins who died in Gaston Co, NC, may possibly be 

our Benjamin Jeams Wiggins. The Swain County David J. Wiggins married a Sarah Jane Woods and had 7 children: 

James David, Alice, Arthur Jackson, Effie, Charlie, Robert and Bessie. The B. J. Wiggins in Gaston County married a 

Frances (possibly Frances Ritchie) and had 3 children: James A., Lloyd V., and probably a daughter who married a 

Johnson. Lloyd V. was the informant on B.J.'s death certificate. 

It looks like the B.J. of Gaston County was a slippery cuss. In the 1900 census for Iredell County, he is listed as David J. 

and he is with his wife Frances and sons James A. (born 1887) and Lloyd V. (born 1897). (I can't find them in the 1910 

census.) In 1920, I think it is him in Gaston County as William J. Wiggins, wife Frances, and "boarder" Lloyd Wiggins 

with Lloyd's wife Texie and their son Norman. In the 1930 census, there is a Frances Wiggins, widow, living in Gaston 

Co with grandson Wayne Johnson. B. J. of Gaston County died in 1926. 

Our B. J. Wiggins came and went from the Sampson County family home starting about 1882. He came back home in 

1884, in 1885 and in 1888. He left for the last time in 1889 and was not heard from again. 

B. J. Wiggins of Gaston County fathered James A. in 1887 and married Frances about 1894; then had Lloyd in 1897.

It has always bothered me that our BJ Wiggins came and went so frequently from home, when he was supposed to be 

in Alabama or Florida. It makes more sense if he was in Gastonia. That's about 200 miles due west of Sampson County, 

I think. 

Betty

CHILD  5

-

Thomas Jay Lathan WIGGINS

Family Bible:

Amie E. Andrews b. Aug 16, 1856, died Nov 29, 1939 md. to T. Jay Wiggins died Jan 22, 1892

Children:

Lesley b. Apr 23, 1883, died May 1953

Mary Elizabeth b. May 27, 1885

William Henry b. Dec. 5, 1887, died June 7, 1889

Violia B. Aug 8 1891, d. Jan 15, 1900

Joanna Wiggins b. Nov 5, 1889

Sampson Co, NC, Estate Records CR087.508.72

Thomas Wiggins, 1904, Widow Amey Wiggins applied for one years support for herself, one grandchild, and 8 grown 

negroes.

1900 Census, Piney Grove, Sampson Co, NC:
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-
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(Continued)

Amy Wiggins, Aug 1854, 44

Leslie Wiggins, son, Mar 1883, 17

Mary Wiggins, dau, May 1885, 15

Joanna Wiggins, dau, Nov 1889, 10

Query -- Re: Wiggins Sampson County NC



Posted by: Fredia Thornton 
Date: August 23, 2001 at 13:29:10


In Reply to: Re: Wiggins Sampson County NC  by camille hedrick_In the notes Mr.Wiggins sent me he said John 

Wiggins married Catherine Williams but must have been married before. Do you know who he was married to? In 

census for 1850 he has daughter Mariah that is 20 and Catherine is only 25 so he had to be married before.  He also 

said that the old homeplace where John and Catherine lived is located about 12 miles south of Newton Grove near a 

community called "Suttontown" There is a Suttontown road there is that it on suttontown road? We are going to clinton 

tomorrow evening and I thought I'd go see if I could find the old homeplace.  Or where it was. He said George Wiggins 

lived there. I found George W. Wiggins ___,1858 died July,1,1918 wife Ann E. Wiggins may,21,1924 died age 80,

William Thomas Wiggins oct.,10,1880 died august 22,1949 wife Bettie C.Wiggins oct.,3,1882 died feb.,20,1938 and 

Leon Wiggins that's what it looked like 1853 it was on the side of the road in the corner of a yard on Kenner Road there 

in Clinton off 701. I also talked to a Frank Wiggins there but he couldn't tell me much. He did tell me that the Thomas 

Jay Lathan was buried back in the woods that was all grown up but we couldn,t get back there._Thanks! Fredia

CHILD  6

-

Rufus Richard "Rufe" WIGGINS

1892 -- Sampson Co, NC, DB 81, pgs 272-274:  

This indenture made this 27th day of December...one thousand eight hundred and ninety two.  Between J. W. Anders 

and Bettie Anders his wife of the Court of Sampson and State of North Carolina of the first part and Rufus R. Wiggins of 

the County of Sampson and State of North Carolina of the second part:  Witnesseth that the said party of the first part 

for and in consideration of the sum of one ($100.00) hundred dollars in hand paid by the party of the second part, the 

receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, have bargained sold conveyed and confirmed, and by those present do give, 

grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm unto the said party of the second part his heirs and assigns forever, all the 

following described piece or parcel of land, lying and being in Piney Grove Township, in the County of Sampson State 

of North Carolina, adjoining the lands of Wm R. King, also the lands of the other shares in Jack Wiggins estate and 

others, and known and designated as follows: viz. being and lying on Goshen Swamp and is known and designated as 

lot no. 2 in the division of the lands of Jack Wiggins, dec’d. and is further known as the interest of the said Rufus R. 

Wiggins in the above described tract of land, to have and to hold, the same, together with all the hereditaments and 

appurtenances thereunto in anywise appertaining...  

Provided, nevertheless, that if the said J. W. Anders & wife of the first part, their heirs, executors and administrators 

shall well and truly pay or cause to be paid to the said Rufus R. Wiggins, part of the second part, his heirs executors 

administrators or assigns the sum of one ($100.00) hundred dollars according to the condition of three certain bonds of 

even date herewith payable as follows, the 1st Dec 1, 1893, 2nd Dec 1st 1894, and the third Dec 1st 1895.  Together 

with fees for probating and recording this instrument then this deed to be null and void, otherwise to be in full force and 

effect. But if default shall be made in the payment of the said sum of money or the interest or any part thereof, or said 

fees at the time heretofore specified for the payment thereof the said party of the first part in such case do hereby 

authorize and fully empower the said party of the second part his heirs executors and administrators and assigns to sell 

the said hereby granted premises at public auction, at the Court House door in Clinton after first advertising the same 

for thirty days in three or more public places in said county and convey the same to the purchaser in fee simple.  And 

out of the moneys arising from such sale to retain the principal and interest which will then be due on the said bonds or 

notes together with all costs and charges and pay the surplus (if any) to the said party of the first part their heirs 

executors administrators or assigns.  The mortgagee shall be at liberty to become a purchaser at such sale.  In 

testimony whereof the said party of the first part have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year first above 

written, signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of G. W. Sutton.

North Carolina Marriage Collection, 1741-2000 Record:

Name:
Rufus R Wiggins


Gender:
Male 


Spouse:
Florence Bordeaux


Spouse Gender:
Female 
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(Continued)

Marriage Date:
21 Dec 1893


Marriage County:
Wayne 


Marriage State:
North Carolina 


Source Vendor:
North Carolina State Archives 


1900 Census, White Oak Precinct, Faison Twp, Duplin Co, NC:

Rufus Wiggins, Aug 1866, 33, married 6 yrs, 

Florence Wiggins, wife, Oct 1869, 30, married 6 yrs, 4 children, 3 living

Mattie I. Wiggins, dau, Nov 1894

Lillian M. Wiggins, dau, Jun 1899

1910 Census, Brogden Township, Wayne Co, NC:

Richard Wiggins, HOH, 45, 1st marriage, married 17 years, NC/NC/NC, farmer

Florence Wiggins, wife, 39, 1st marriage, married 18 years, 7 children/6 living, NC/NC/NC

Mattie Wiggins, dau, 15

Lillian Wiggins, dau, 11

Elmer Wiggins, son, 9

Willie Wiggins, son, 7

Joseph Wiggins, son, 5

Norman Wiggins, son, 2

1920 Census, Faison Township, Duplin Co, NC:

Rufus R. Wiggins, 55, rents land

Florence Wiggins, wife, 44

Elmer Wiggins, son, 19

Willie D. Wiggins, son, 17

Joseph E. Wiggins, son, 14

Norman Wiggins, son, 12

Duplin County, NC, Death Certificates:

Rufus R. Wiggins 09/01/1927

Father's Name: Jack Wiggins

Mother's Name: Kity Williams

Wayne County, NC - Cemeteries - From the book, "Gravestone Inscriptions":

MAPLEWOOD CEMETERY, MT. OLIVE, NC - FOURTH SEGMENT

Rufus R. Wiggins, 1864 - 1927

Florence M. Wiggins, 1868 - 1942

CHILD  7

-

Josiah S. "Joe" WIGGINS

Note from Lois Wiggins Price:  Josiah S. Wiggins went to Darlington, South Carolina, then Alabama, then Texas and 

later died in Oklahoma.  In some places, he is listed as Joseph and other places as Joe Wiggins or Josiah Wiggins.  

Lathan Wiggins verified that Joe Wiggins moved to Oklahoma.  Two of Joe's children visited Lathan some years ago.

1900 Census, Fannin Co, TX:

Joe Wiggins, Aug 1868, 31, married 10 years, NC/NC/NC, farm labor

Lue Wiggins, wife, Mar 1867, 33, married 10 yrs, bore 4 children, 2 of whom are living, AL/GA/GA

Jodie Wiggins, dau, Apr 1892, 8, AL/NC/AL

Claudie Wiggins, son, Mar 1896, 4, TX/NC/AL

1920 Census, Weatherford City, Custer Co, OK:

Joseph S. Wiggins, 55 born in NC, parents in US

Lue M. Wiggins, wife, 53, born in AL, parents in GA

Jodie A. Wiggins, dau, 25, AL
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Josiah S. "Joe" WIGGINS

(Continued)

Inez Wiggins, dau, 18, Texas

Lela Wiggins, dau, 15, Texas

Ethel Wiggins, dau, 12, Oklahoma

1920 Census, Clinton, Custer Co, OK:

Claud Wiggins, 23, TX/NC/AL

Cecil Wiggins, 19, wife, OK/TN/Nebraska

Lillian Beatty, mother(in law?), 49, widow, Nebraska/Ohio/Pennsylvania

1930 Census, Clinton, Custer Co, OK:

Claud J. Wiggins, 34, married at 21, born in Texas, Druggist

Secil Wiggins, wife, 30, born in OK, father born in TN, mother born in Nebraska

Virgil R. Wiggins, son, 11, born in OK, father TX, mother OK, 

Lilyan Beatty, mother in law, 56, widow, born in Nebraska, father born in PA, mother born in PA

1930 Census, Weatherford, Custer Co, OK:

Jodie Wiggins, roomer, white female, 37, born in AL, father born in NC, mother born in AL, Teacher, Public Schol

Inez Wiggins, roomer, white female, 28, born in TX, father born in NC, mother born in AL, Teacher, Public School

March 5, 1942 -- Oklahoma Newspaper:

Teachers' Mother Dies_Miss Inez WIGGINS and Miss Jody WIGGINS, both of whom are employed in the Pawnee 

public schools, were called to Weatherford early Sunday morning by the death of their mother. Funeral services were 

held Monday afternoon._During their absence, Mrs. Wayne SWALLEY taught Miss Inez WIGGIN's third grade class, 

and Mrs. Stanley J. BRYANT substituted for Miss Jody WIGGINS in the first grade.
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